
 

BOARD OF FINANCE REGULAR MEETING 

TOWN OF SALEM 

VIA ZOOM VIRTUAL  

DECEMBER 9, 2021 – 7:00 P.M. 
 

Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88621010895?pwd=MTdGV0xzeU5EMElRWUZPQzM4MzdMQT09  

Passcode: 059246 
Or Telephone: 

(301) 715 8592  or (312) 626 6799  or (646) 558 8656  or (253) 215 8782  or (346) 248 7799   
Webinar ID: 886 2101 0895 

Passcode: 059246 
 

CALL TO ORDER:       
 

RECOGNITION OF VISITORS:  
 

SEAT ALTERNATE IF NEEDED: 
 

COMMUNICATIONS:    
 

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA: 
 

AGENDA:   
1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: OCTOBER 14, 2021 AND NOVEMBER 23, 2021  
      BOF MEETINGS 

 
  2.  TREASURER’S REPORTS 

          A. REVENUE SUMMARY 
          B. TRIAL BALANCE 

   C. FUND BALANCE 
          D.OTHER 

 
  3.    PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
  4.    SELECTMAN’S REPORT 

 
     5.    APPROVE 2022 MEETING CALENDAR  
 
     6.   REVIEW 2022-23 BUDGET CALENDAR 
 
     7.   SALEM VOLUNTEER FIRE COMPANY RE: REPAIR 
 
     8.    BOE/SCHOOL IT PLAN 
 
     9.   SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS 
            A. BOE 
            B. EMERGENCY SERVICES & SAFETY 
            C. BOE DATA REQUEST 
  
    10.  CAPITAL PLAN DISCUSSION 
 
    11.  FORMAT & PLANNING DISCUSSION FOR LETTER TO DEPT’S REGARDING   

       BUDGETARY EXPECTATIONS AND GUIDELINES FOR 2022-2023, INCLUDES  
       DISCUSSION ON ISSUES & CONCERNS FOR THE UPCOMING BUDGET SEASON 

 
  
OLD BUSINESS 
 

S. Dickson, Chairman 

M. Collins, Secretary 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/88621010895?pwd=MTdGV0xzeU5EMElRWUZPQzM4MzdMQT09


TOWN OF SALEM 

BOARD OF FINANCE 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

THURSDAY, OCTOBER 14, 2021 – 7:00 P.M. 

  

  

PRESENT ABSENT 

William “Skip” Dickson, Chairman Maryann Casciano 

Marshall Collins, Clerk     Joseph Duncan, Alternate 

Corinne (Cory) Bourgeois Dean Wojcik, Alternate  

Deborah Cadwell  

Janet Griggs ALSO PRESENT 

John Bernier, Alternate First Selectman Kevin Lyden 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Dickson called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. 

RECOGNITION OF VISITORS: none 

SEAT ALTERNATE IF NEEDED: 

M/S/C: Collins/Bourgeois, to seat Alternate Board Member Bernier for Board Member 

Casciano. Discussion: None. Voice vote, 5-0, all in favor.  

COMMUNICATIONS: 

a. E-mail from Friends of Salem Library President Carl Narwocki regarding the Zemko 

building 

b. E-mail from Clerk Collins in response to Finance Specialist Lisa Jablonski 

The Board discussed requesting that the supporting documents be sent to them as they are 

received so that they would have the time to review the information. 

c. Connecticut Council of Municipality’s Salem 2021 Equity Profile 

d. Link to information regarding the Connecticut Department of Energy and Environmental 

Protection’s (CT DEEP) Grant for waste management improvements/modifications 

e. E-mail from Clerk Collins regarding broadband  

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA: 

M/S/C: Griggs/Bourgeois, to add the following items to the agenda: 

7. Zemko Building 

8. CT DEEP Grant Application 

9. American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Funds 

Discussion: None. Voice vote, 6-0, all in favor.  



Page  2     

Board of Finance Regular Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, October 14, 2021 

AGENDA: 

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: SEPTEMBER 9, 2021 BOARD OF FINANCE 

MEETING 

M/S/C: Bourgeois/Marshall, to approve the September 9, 2021 Board of Finance 

Regular Meeting Minutes with the following amendments: 

Page 3, 3rd Paragraph, 4th line from end: 

The budgets have been combined into one department and… He also felt that 

their request was somewhat disrespectful to the volunteers who donate their 

time and energy to support the health and safety of its townspeople. 

Add to Page 4, 2nd paragraph: 

The subcommittee will be comprised of Board Members Bernier and Collins. 

Discussion: None. Voice vote, 5-0-1. Voting in Favor: Board Members 

Bourgeois, Cadwell, Collins, Griggs, and Dickson. Voting in Opposition: 

None. Voting in Abstention: Board Member Bernier.  

2. TREASURER’S REPORT – no report 

A. REVENUE SUMMARY 

B. TRIAL BALANCE 

C. FUND BALANCE 

D. OTHER 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS – none 

4. SELECTMAN’S REPORT 

First Selectman Lyden reported that the Uncas Health District was awarded the Jaqueline D. 

Owens Service to the Community Award by the NAACP (National Association for the 

Advancement of Colored People), Norwich division.  

James McIntyre was recently elected as the new Chairman of the Safety Community. The 

Committee, which includes members of the Public Works department, Library, Town Hall, 

Emergency Services, and the State Trooper, meets bi-monthly to review and discuss any 

safety concerns and make any necessary enhancements. Due to an increase in State Police 

Trooper retirements, the town’s night-time Resident State Trooper has been revolving over 

the past few years. Some savings will be gained as the newer Troopers are coming in at lower 

steps. There are no foreseeable savings in retirement costs. Salem School’s Annual Safety 

Plan was reviewed and submitted.  

Granite posts have been installed at Salem Cemetery; the swag chains will be installed in the 

near future. The cemetery road has been chip sealed and millings have been placed along the 

path leading to the well that is used to water the plants. The posts were purchased by the 



Page  3     

Board of Finance Regular Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, October 14, 2021 

Salem Cemetery Association and installed by the town’s Public Works Department, which 

also mows and plows the property. 

He commended the town’s new Public Works Foreman Tony Gallicchio, who has over 20 

years of municipal experience. Public Works Foreman Gallicchio is working under Public 

Works Director/Advisor Don Bourdeau, Jr., and regularly meets with the Public Works 

Director and First Selectman. 

Information regarding the expenditure of ARPA (American Rescue Plan Act) Funds was sent 

to the Board Members. Approximately $600,000.00 has been received and an additional 

$600,000.00 will be received next year. To date, $6,000.00 has been allocated to the Uncas 

Health District and $7,000.00 has been allocated to upgrade the audio/visual system in the 

Conference Room. Requests from numerous non-profit organizations for funding and 

suggestions for the expenditure of the funds have been received. Discussion ensued regarding 

the possibility of investing in broadband technology for the town. He suggested forming a 

committee comprised of members from the Boards of Selectmen and Finance and the 

community at large to review, discuss, and propose the expenditures. He also recommended 

that any large expenditures be included in the town’s Budget Referendum. Items costing 

between $32,000.00 and $160,000.00 could be approved via a Town Meeting. Smaller items, 

under $32,000.00, may be expended more informally.  

The Board of Selectmen approved an agreement with the Gardner Lake Volunteer Fire 

Company. The new agreement raises the volunteer stipend from $30.00 to $40.00 per shift. 

The increase is expected to result in the line item being overbudgeted by approximately 

$20,000.00. The agreement will also help resolve some of the issues associated with the 

pending lawsuit, which remains active.  

The above-ground fuel oil tank at the Town Hall is complete. The School was required to 

purchase a $5,000.00 insurance policy for the underground oil tank due, in part, to a 

construction delay. The tank is scheduled for de-installation and replacement with an above-

ground tank. An insurance rebate for the remaining period will not be received following the 

completion of the project.  

5. SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS 

Fire Safety Subcommittee (Board Members Bourgeois and Casciano) 

Emergency Services Liaison Selectman Ed Chmielewski expressed his appreciation to the 

Board for allowing them to provide an update regarding the progress they have made since 

their appointments in July 2020. He commended and expressed his pleasure in working with 

Emergency Services Director Mike Bednarz. He provided a brief recap of their progress as 

they continue to meet regularly with the Chiefs and Deputy Chiefs of both fire companies. 

Both of the departments, full- and part-time staff, and training officers continued to serve the 

public throughout the pandemic. Both of the fire companies have conducted joint training 

exercises, including hosting a live fire training this past weekend. In November, the town will 



Page  4     

Board of Finance Regular Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, October 14, 2021 

be sponsoring an aerial ladder certification training for the paid staff and volunteers. They 

continue to work on standardizing their protocol standard operating procedures, guidelines in 

cooperation with both fire departments. They have also enhanced the staffing and safety for 

the town by hiring a second full-time Firefighter/EMT, who is also a certified paramedic, and 

several part-time Firefighter/EMTs. Training of the town’s financing procedures was also 

conducted for the fire companies. Both Emergency Services Director Bednarz and himself 

remain available to both departments 24/7 to resolve any issues and to improve 

communications between the fire companies, the town, and the Board. While they have been 

faced with some challenges, there were no noteworthy issues to report. The team, which 

cannot work without each other, continues to work well together and creatively resolve issues 

in a positive and proactive manner as they aim to enhance the team.  

Emergency Services Director Bednarz expressed his appreciation to Emergency Services 

Liaison Selectman Chmielewski and briefly stated their ideas to improve their 

communication and record management system. The need to establish their roles arose as a 

result of issues related to the Federal Labor Laws, which precludes the town from having 

their volunteers move into a paid position, arose. While they have been fortunate to have their 

volunteers, who were equipped with all of the necessary training, gear and equipment, and 

familiarity with the town, graduate to a paid position(s) in the past, this is no longer the case. 

As such, they are now faced with the need for additional funding as they begin to hire outside 

Firefighters/EMTs. Because most of the Calls for Service derive between the hours of 7:00 

a.m. and 5:00 p.m., the need to supplement the daytime staff became evident. As the 

knowledge of the veteran First Responders becomes lost, he strives to plan for the future by 

creating Standard Operating Procedures for the departments.  

Emergency Services Liaison Selectman Chmielewski added that the town will need to 

allocate more funds to emergency services, including upgrading and improving its 

communication technology. He commended the Emergency Services team and thanked the 

Board for their support and their service to the town. Emergency Services Director Bednarz 

concurred as he looks forward to continuing working with the Board. 

BOE (Board of Education) Subcommittee (Board Members Cadwell and Griggs)  

Brief discussion was held regarding the ESSER/ARPA (Elementary and Secondary School 

Emergency Relief/American Rescue Plan Act) Funds the BOE has and will be receiving. The 

following questions were posed for the BOE 

Total amount of ESSER/ARPA Funds to be received 

Date the ESSER/ARPA Funds must be expended by 

How they plan to expend their funds 

The total enrollment of students (VoAg/Magnet Schools, Homeschool, Salem School) 

Discussion ensued regarding the care that must be taken with respect to their questions to 

ensure that they are not overreaching or micro-managing the BOE’s budget.  



Page  5     

Board of Finance Regular Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, October 14, 2021 

The Board discussed the information requested by the BOE in preparation for the teacher 

negotiation contract. Board Member Bernier provided a brief review of the information he 

has gathered.  

6. CAPITAL PLAN DISCUSSION 

a. Send letter to all Departments to review their Capital item requests and submit the 

requests with documentation before the December Board of Finance Meeting 

Chairman Dickson reported that the letter to the departments will be drafted for the 

Board’s review and approval. He also recommended that the Board Members review the 

Capital Plan, which will be forwarded to them.  

b. Other discussion items regarding the Capital Plan – none 

7. ZEMKO BUILDING 

Board Member Griggs reported that FOSL President Narwocki requested the possibility of 

reconnecting the electricity in the Zemko building so that the volunteers could comfortably 

sort the books in the building. The request was also forwarded to the Board of Selectmen. 

The building was purchased with the copper stripped from the building. 

8. CT DEEP GRANT APPLICATION 

The CT DEEP Sustainable Materials Management Grant information will be forwarded to 

the Board of Selectmen. 

9. AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT (ARPA) FUNDS 

Board Member Griggs proposed the possibility of sending requests to the various 

departments, groups, and organizations throughout the town to submit a list of items that they 

would like to purchase utilizing the ARPA Funds. The list may be reviewed by the yet-to-be-

formed Committee.  

OLD BUSINESS 

It was clarified that an item may be added to the agenda by a two-thirds vote and the item may be 

voted upon by the Board.  

Clerk Collins requested that the Subcommittees be clearly specified on the Agenda for 

transparency purposes. 

ADJOURNMENT 

M/S/C:   Collins/Bourgeois, to adjourn the meeting at 9:25 p.m. Discussion: None. Voice 

vote, 6-0, all in favor. Meeting adjourned. 

  

 

Respectfully Submitted by: Agnes T. Miyuki, Recording Secretary for the Town of Salem 



TOWN OF SALEM 

BOARD OF FINANCE 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 23, 2021 – 7:00 P.M. 

  

  

 Please click the link below to join the webinar: 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81740076858?pwd=cy9SVFFONmF3dHBtdm5nUlpQL3o0UT09 

Passcode: 708572 

Or Telephone: 

301 715 8592, 312 626 6799, 646 558 8656, 253 215 8782, 346 248 7799, 720 707 2699 

Webinar ID: 817 4007 6858   |   Passcode: 708572 

  

  

PRESENT ABSENT 

William “Skip” Dickson, Chairman Maryann Casciano, Alternate 

Marshall Collins, Clerk 

Corinne (Cory) Bourgeois 

Deborah Cadwell 

Janet Griggs 

Matt Rucci ALSO PRESENT 

John Bernier, Alternate First Selectman Ed Chmielewski 

  

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Dickson called the meeting to order at 6:07 p.m. 

Newly-elected Board Member Rucci was welcomed to the Board of Finance.  

RECOGNITION OF VISITORS:  

Diba Khan-Bureau, Hilltop Trail 

Sue Spang, Hartford Road 

COMMUNICATIONS: 

1. Copy of a letter from Salem Democratic Town Committee Chairman Thomas (TJ) Butcher, 

dated November 10 and received November 18, addressed to the members of the Board of 

Finance, First Selectman Chmielewski, and Planning and Zoning Commission Chairman 

Vernon Smith stating the procedure for the filling of vacancies on a board/commission 

2. Copy of a letter from Salem Democratic Town Committee Chairman Butcher, dated 

November 10, recommending David Bingham to fill the Alternate Board Member vacancy 



Page  2     

Board of Finance Regular Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, November 23, 2021 

3. Copy of a letter from Board of Finance Clerk Collins, dated November 19, addressed to and 

in response to Salem Democratic Town Committee Chairman Butcher correcting his 

statement(s) regarding the procedure for the filling of vacancies per the Secretary of State  

4. Copy of a letter from Salem Democratic Town Committee Chairman Butcher regarding the 

appointment of Board of Finance Alternate Member Bernier, which the Salem Democratic 

Town Committee feels “was unethical on the part of both the BOF [Board of Finance] and 

the BOS [Board of Selectmen], violates the SMSA [Salem Minority Sharing Agreement] 

(formerly known as the ‘Gentleman’s Agreement”[sic]) and violates the minority 

representation rules.” 

Clerk Collins explained that, because the party of the individual must meet the minority 

representation requirements, a Republican was precluded from being appointed to the 

position. It is the responsibility of the Democratic and Republican Town Committees to 

recommend candidates for vacancies. Per the Town Charter and State Statutes, it is the 

responsibility of the boards and commissions to fill the vacancies; should the board or 

commission not fill the vacancy within 30 days, the responsibility is transferred to the Board 

of Selectmen. Because the Board of Finance did not act within the required 30-day period, 

the responsibility fell on the Board of Selectmen who proceeded to appoint Alternate Board 

Member Bernier. 

5. Copy of a letter from Alternate Board Member Bernier in response to Salem Democratic 

Town Committee Chairman Butcher’s letter, correcting the letter’s inaccuracies. 

AGENDA: 

1.      PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Sue Spang, Hartford Road, recited her letter, submitted for the record, in support of David 

Bingham for the Board of Finance Alternate position. She cited the Democratic Town 

Committee’s support for the appointment of Mr. Bingham, an experienced individual who 

has shown an interest in serving on the Board, as evidenced by his past and recent 

candidacies, and stated the process which must be followed to fill the position, adding that 

the appointment of an individual recruited by the Board, itself, would “violate the public 

pronouncements from the leader of the Republican Town Committee to put election 

hostilities behind us and work together for the betterment of Salem.” 

In response, Clerk Collins stated that he received a statement from the Office of Legislative 

Research via Democratic Town Committee Chairman Butcher, which states that “the 

Statutes do not appear to explicitly require appointing authorities to appoint a replacement 

belonging to the state political party as the member vacating a municipal board or 

commission.” He agreed that the vacancy must be filled by a member of a non-Republican 

party and they are obligated to receive and consider the Republican or Democratic Town 

Committees recommendations. The ultimate responsibility to fill the vacancy lies with the 



Page  3     

Board of Finance Regular Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, November 23, 2021 

members of the board/commission. Should the board/commission feel that there is a more 

qualified, willing, and able candidate to serve on the board/commission, it is their 

responsibility to appoint that individual. 

Diba Khan-Bureau, 40 Hilltop Trail, also expressed her support for Mr. Bingham to serve 

as an Alternate Member of the Board of Finance, stating that he is a long-time Salem 

resident who has served the town in many capacities. She concurred with both Ms. Spang 

and Democratic Town Committee Chairman Butcher that the position should be filled by a 

non-Republican member of the community. Mr. Bingham has the qualifications, has shown 

great interest in serving on the Board, and should be considered for the position.  

Leslie Hotary, Harris Road Ext., a 16-year resident of the town, also spoke in favor of the 

appointment of Mr. Bingham and echoed the comments made by Democratic Town 

Committee Chairman Butcher, Ms. Spang, and Ms. Khan-Bureau. She added that Mr. 

Bingham is not only qualified and interested in serving on the Board, but would also 

provide the Board with diversity; the appointment of an Unaffiliated individual who leans 

Republican would not create a diverse committee. As such, she felt that it would not only 

be their responsibility, but also in their best interest to appoint a Democratic candidate. 

2. ELECT CHAIRMAN AND CLERK 

M/S/C: Collins/Cadwell, to nominate and re-elect Chairman Dickson as the 

Chairman of the Board of Finance. There being no additional nominations, 

Chairman Dickson closed the nominations. Discussion: None. Roll Call vote, 

6-0, all in favor. Voting in Favor: Board Members Bourgeois, Cadwell, 

Collins, Griggs, Rucci, and Dickson. 

M/S/C: Dickson/Cadwell, to nominate and re-elect Clerk Collins as the Clerk of the 

Board of Finance. There being no additional nominations, Chairman 

Dickson closed the nominations. Discussion: None. Roll Call vote, 4-2. Voting 

in Favor: Board Members Bourgeois, Cadwell, Collins, and Dickson. Voting 

in Opposition: Board Members Griggs and Rucci. 

3. APPOINT ALTERNATE MEMBER 

Chairman Dickson, in response to Democratic Town Committee Chairman Butcher’s letter 

regarding the appointment of Alternate Board Member Bernier, clarified that, in his 

recollection, he spoke with and requested from then-Democratic Town Committee 

Chairman John Houchin for a recommendation to fill the vacancy and received a response 

after the required 30-day period. It is not the Board’s goal to prohibit the receipt of any 

recommendations from either the Democratic or Republican Town Committees.   

M: Collins, to nominate Kate Belleville as an Alternate Member of the Board of 

Finance.  



Page  4     

Board of Finance Regular Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, November 23, 2021 

M: Griggs, to nominate David Bingham as an Alternate Member of the Board of 

Finance.  

There being no additional nominations, Chairman Dickson closed the 

nominations. Discussion: Clerk Collins stated that Ms. Belleville, a Democrat, is a 

26-year resident of the town who has raised her three children in the Town of 

Salem. He provided a brief background of her education and experience in the 

health industry. She is an active member of the community, a centrist, and a very 

forward-looking individual who would bring a lot to the table. Board Member 

Griggs stated that Mr. Bingham has invested a tremendous amount of time 

researching issues and presenting well-documented information which the Board 

chose not to allow her to present. She felt that Mr. Bingham is a very involved 

and committed individual whom she fully supports. She also commented on the 

importance of having diversity on the Board and believed that discussing all 

sides, listening to each other, and developing a compromise is the best way to 

meet the needs of the town; the Board would be doing a disservice to the town if 

they are not fully discussing the full spectrum of the issues before them. While 

Board Member Bourgeois agreed and encouraged the Board to be diverse in all 

aspects, she is also a proponent of providing new people with the opportunity to 

join, serve, and contribute to the town’s boards and commissions by enlightening 

and presenting them with new ideas, regardless of his/her party. They are one 

town, one community, and one team, looking out for the citizens of Salem. Board 

Member Bernier added, in response to comments regarding the idea that 

unaffiliated voters do not represent diversity, that the political make-up of the 

Town of Salem is such that there are nearly more Unaffiliated individuals 

residing in the Town than there are Democrats and Republicans combined. As 

such, the notion that Unaffiliated members of the community should be excluded 

or are not representative of a diverse opinion is a fallacy. Roll Call vote, 4-2, in 

Favor of Kate Belleville. Voting in Favor of Kate Belleville: Board Members 

Bourgeois, Cadwell, Collins, and Dickson. Voting in Favor of David Bingham: 

Board Members Griggs and Rucci. Kate Belleville was appointed as an Alternate 

Member of the Board of Finance.  

ADJOURNMENT 

M/S/C:   Collins/Bourgeois, to adjourn the meeting at 6:37 p.m. Discussion: None. Voice 

vote, 6-0, all in favor. Meeting adjourned. 

  

  

 

Respectfully Submitted by: Agnes T. Miyuki, Recording Secretary for the Town of Salem 



Nov 30, 21

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
1100001 · 001 - GF Sweep/Checking Acct 4,223,610.75
1100002 · Investment Account (STIFF) 5,874,257.91
1100003 · Tax Collector's Change Fund 100.00
1100007 · Tax Collector Credit Card Acct 115,774.45
1100008 · Town Clerk Credit Card Acct 14,259.75
1100009 · Building/Rec Credit Card Acct 19,563.79
1100010 · Cash on Hand-Selectman 94.00
1100011 · Infrastructure CD 5,793.11
1100015 · Building Depart. Change Fund 50.00

Total Checking/Savings 10,253,503.76

Accounts Receivable
1300005 · Property Tax Receivable 113,697.66
1300007 · Allowance for Doubtful Acct -45,707.00
1300008 · Interest Tax Receivables 16,151.69
1300009 · Lien Tax Receivables 600.00

Total Accounts Receivable 84,742.35

Other Current Assets
1400009 · Due from CNR 1,069,996.73
1401001 · Due From Special Educ Grant Fun 617,034.33

Total Other Current Assets 1,687,031.06

Total Current Assets 12,025,277.17

TOTAL ASSETS 12,025,277.17

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

200000 · Accounts Payable 173,641.03

Total Accounts Payable 173,641.03

Other Current Liabilities
210000 · ST of CT - Payables

207024 · ED Fee Building Permits 85.44
210106 · Marriage License Payable 384.00
210107 · Hist Doc Preservation 173.15
210108 · Electronic Registration 1,110.00
210109 · State Zoning Fee 1,156.00
210110 · Dog Licenses 1,086.00
210115 · Farmland Preserv. (PA 09-229) 1,980.00

Total 210000 · ST of CT - Payables 5,974.59

2100004 · Advance Tax Collection 10,675.66
211000 · Accrued Payroll and Related

211008 · PW Union Dues -19.75
211011 · EMT Union Dues -400.00
211305 · Insurance -1,034.45
211310 · United Way Donation 240.00
211312 · Aflac Deduction -456.97
211314 · Anthem Life -1,942.28

Total 211000 · Accrued Payroll and Related -3,613.45

5:33 PM Town of Salem - General Fund
12/06/21 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of November 30, 2021

Page 1



Nov 30, 21

212000 · Due to Other Funds-All
212003 · Due to/from BOE Preschool 56,679.46
212018 · Due to Other Funds 1,173.36
212019 · Due to GF Comm. Found Grant 09 2,402.13
212020 · Due to CNR 2,882,276.34
212022 · Due to Library ARPA Grant 8,125.96
212729 · Interlocal Reval. Grant/Pres. 669,266.58
212740 · Due to School Bldg Fund 774,703.96

Total 212000 · Due to Other Funds-All 4,394,627.79

212500 · Due to Other Groups
212517 · Monitoring/Inspect/Exav-Henrici 144.00
212518 · Monitoring/Inspect/Exav - Sav 50.00
212519 · Monitoring/Inspect/Exav-Gran 2,525.00
212521 · Monitor/Inspect/Exav-Nutmeg Grv -184.00
212522 · Monitoring/Inspect/Excav-Renz 180.00
212523 · Monitor/Inspect/Exca-Kobyluck 2,332.00
212560 · Quarry Bonds 9,106.07
212600 · Pavillion Deposit Refunds 250.00
212700 · Field Use Deposit 50.00

Total 212500 · Due to Other Groups 14,453.07

213000 · Deferred Revenue
2130001 · Deferred Property Tax 108,439.00
2130002 · Deferred Prop Tax Int & Liens 21,913.00
2130003 · P/Z Subdivision Signs 10.00

Total 213000 · Deferred Revenue 130,362.00

Total Other Current Liabilities 4,552,479.66

Total Current Liabilities 4,726,120.69

Long Term Liabilities
260000 · SBEA Loans

260004 · Public Works 80,000.00

Total 260000 · SBEA Loans 80,000.00

Total Long Term Liabilities 80,000.00

Total Liabilities 4,806,120.69

Equity
3170000 · Restricted Fund Balance

3170008 · Restricted Fund Balance- Misc 50.00
3170025 · Restricted Historic Doc Preserv 1,936.69
3170026 · TC Farmland Preserv 2,415.16
3170027 · Restricted - TC Electronic Reg. 2,936.41
3170030 · Restricted Town Farmland Prev. 36,038.20

Total 3170000 · Restricted Fund Balance 43,376.46

320000 · Assigned Fund Balance
399999 · Supplemental Capital Fund 1,010,080.00

Total 320000 · Assigned Fund Balance 1,010,080.00

330000 · Unassigned Fund Balance
330002 · Unassigned Fund Balance 2,735,695.83

Total 330000 · Unassigned Fund Balance 2,735,695.83

5:33 PM Town of Salem - General Fund
12/06/21 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of November 30, 2021

Page 2



Nov 30, 21

3900002 · Undesignated Fund Balance 1,207,361.23
3900009 · Reserved for Encumbrances 37,067.01
Net Income 2,185,575.95

Total Equity 7,219,156.48

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 12,025,277.17

5:33 PM Town of Salem - General Fund
12/06/21 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of November 30, 2021

Page 3



Jul - Nov 21 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

4-093 · Grants for Education
035 · Education Equalization 631,270.00 2,525,078.00 -1,893,808.00 25.0%
036 · Adult Education 2,507.00 3,672.00 -1,165.00 68.3%

Total 4-093 · Grants for Education 633,777.00 2,528,750.00 -1,894,973.00 25.1%

4-094 · Licenses & Permits
042 · Electrical 3,686.00 7,500.00 -3,814.00 49.1%
043 · Plumbing 256.00 2,000.00 -1,744.00 12.8%
044 · Heating 3,585.00 5,600.00 -2,015.00 64.0%
046 · Zoning Compliance 225.00 500.00 -275.00 45.0%
047 · Building 13,059.76 36,000.00 -22,940.24 36.3%
049 · Conveyance Tax 30,700.54 65,000.00 -34,299.46 47.2%
050 · Pistol Permits 840.00 1,000.00 -160.00 84.0%
052 · Landfill Fees 4,570.00 7,000.00 -2,430.00 65.3%
053 · Garbage Bags 19,416.00 32,000.00 -12,584.00 60.7%
0533 · Tipping Hauling Fees 1,166.94 0.00 1,166.94 100.0%
054 · Miscellaneous 410.00 1,000.00 -590.00 41.0%

Total 4-094 · Licenses & Permits 77,915.24 157,600.00 -79,684.76 49.4%

4-095 · Charges for Current Services
056 · Recording Fees 10,814.00 16,000.00 -5,186.00 67.6%
057 · Sale of Maps 40.50 50.00 -9.50 81.0%
058 · Sales of Copies 2,125.50 900.00 1,225.50 236.2%
061 · P & Z Commission 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%
062 · Inland Wetland Comm Fees 80.00 200.00 -120.00 40.0%
063 · CFC Evacuation Fees 2,115.00 750.00 1,365.00 282.0%
067 · Electronic Registration Fees 3,304.00 4,000.00 -696.00 82.6%

Total 4-095 · Charges for Current Services 18,479.00 22,900.00 -4,421.00 80.7%

4-096 · Revenue use of Town Money
064 · General Fund 2,426.95 6,000.00 -3,573.05 40.4%

Total 4-096 · Revenue use of Town Money 2,426.95 6,000.00 -3,573.05 40.4%

4-097 · Miscellaneous
070 · Insurance Claims/Refunds 11,565.00 5,000.00 6,565.00 231.3%
072 · Library Fees/ Fines 417.00 9,500.00 -9,083.00 4.4%
074 · Recreation Fee Base Activities 4,824.05 3,000.00 1,824.05 160.8%
076 · Miscellaneous 14,967.66 10,000.00 4,967.66 149.7%

Total 4-097 · Miscellaneous 31,773.71 27,500.00 4,273.71 115.5%

410000 · General Property Tax
1010 · General Property Tax Current Yr 7,253,987.24 12,328,718.00 -5,074,730.76 58.8%
1020 · General Property Tax Prior Yr 64,023.30 50,000.00 14,023.30 128.0%
1030 · Interest On General Property Ta 27,023.36 40,000.00 -12,976.64 67.6%
1040 · Liens 360.00 500.00 -140.00 72.0%
1050 · MV Supplement 1,453.55 72,000.00 -70,546.45 2.0%
1070 · MV Interest 569.78 500.00 69.78 114.0%
1080 · Current FY Refunds -7,635.93 -25,000.00 17,364.07 30.5%
1085 · Previous FY Refunds -3,323.55 -1,000.00 -2,323.55 332.4%

Total 410000 · General Property Tax 7,336,457.75 12,465,718.00 -5,129,260.25 58.9%

420000 · State/Federal Grants
001 · Town Aid Roads (TAR) 96,508.78 193,274.00 -96,765.22 49.9%
0020 · Telephone Access Line 0.00 4,965.00 -4,965.00 0.0%
0023 · Veterans Tax Relief 0.00 2,834.00 -2,834.00 0.0%
004 · Payment in Lieu of Taxes PILOT 42,030.04 35,653.00 6,377.04 117.9%
005 · MRSA 14,935.96
009 · Pequot/Mohegan 0.00 7,370.00 -7,370.00 0.0%
011 · LOCIP (Infra-Structure) 0.00 33,443.00 -33,443.00 0.0%
012 · Munic Projects 0.00 4,699.00 -4,699.00 0.0%
038 · Municipal Stabilization Grant 132,694.00 132,694.00 0.00 100.0%
099 · Miscellaneous 43,143.50 55,906.00 -12,762.50 77.2%

Total 420000 · State/Federal Grants 329,312.28 470,838.00 -141,525.72 69.9%

Total Income 8,430,141.93 15,679,306.00 -7,249,164.07 53.8%

Gross Profit 8,430,141.93 15,679,306.00 -7,249,164.07 53.8%

Expense
5-100 · Selectman

201 · Membership Fees 5,669.00 5,710.00 -41.00 99.3%
301 · Mileage 360.00 960.00 -600.00 37.5%
401 · Other Expense 0.00 900.00 -900.00 0.0%

Total 5-100 · Selectman 6,029.00 7,570.00 -1,541.00 79.6%

5-1000 · BOE Control Accounts
1000 · BOE Accounts Payable 2,031,148.49
2000 · BOE Payroll 1,387,033.18
5-1000 · BOE Control Accounts - Other 0.00 11,050,886.00 -11,050,886.00 0.0%

Total 5-1000 · BOE Control Accounts 3,418,181.67 11,050,886.00 -7,632,704.33 30.9%

5:37 PM Town of Salem - General Fund
12/06/21 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July through November 2021

Page 1



Jul - Nov 21 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

5-105 · Salaries
100 · Selectman (See Acting Selec125) 26,037.59 71,402.00 -45,364.41 36.5%
101 · Administrative Assistants 13,030.55 38,540.00 -25,509.45 33.8%
102 · Town Clerk 20,321.46 54,837.00 -34,515.54 37.1%
103 · Town Clerk Assistant 7,002.69 15,980.00 -8,977.31 43.8%
104 · Tax Collector 7,566.13 54,837.00 -47,270.87 13.8%
105 · Assistant Tax Collector 14,838.75 28,986.00 -14,147.25 51.2%
106 · Assessor 20,413.56 55,006.00 -34,592.44 37.1%
107 · Assesssor Assistant 11,714.63 25,326.00 -13,611.37 46.3%
108 · Treasurer 7,393.64 20,430.00 -13,036.36 36.2%
109 · Financial Administrative 21,690.24 55,366.00 -33,675.76 39.2%
110 · Registrar of Voters 5,227.53 14,122.00 -8,894.47 37.0%
111 · ZEO/WEO 17,546.59 48,234.00 -30,687.41 36.4%
113 · Recording Secretary 2,660.00 9,000.00 -6,340.00 29.6%
114 · Administrative Part Time 6,574.10 12,872.00 -6,297.90 51.1%
115 · Recreation Coordinator 5,429.19 11,100.00 -5,670.81 48.9%
116 · Public Works 138,067.49 406,000.00 -267,932.51 34.0%
117 · Public Works Director 6,351.73 17,388.00 -11,036.27 36.5%
118 · Public Work's Summer Help 4,635.00 8,940.00 -4,305.00 51.8%
120 · Fire Marshals/CP 7,572.80 22,430.00 -14,857.20 33.8%
121 · EMT/Maintenance 77,396.01 220,030.00 -142,633.99 35.2%
123 · Assistant Library Staff 24,473.27 66,535.00 -42,061.73 36.8%
124 · Head Librarian 23,653.02 64,304.00 -40,650.98 36.8%
125 · Acting Selectman 3,384.70 8,000.00 -4,615.30 42.3%

Total 5-105 · Salaries 472,980.67 1,329,665.00 -856,684.33 35.6%

5-110 · Building Official
402 · Building Official Expenses 842.29 4,292.00 -3,449.71 19.6%

Total 5-110 · Building Official 842.29 4,292.00 -3,449.71 19.6%

5-112 · Town Clerk
143 · Vital Statistics 24.85 0.00 24.85 100.0%
303 · Mileage/Conference/Dues 185.00 1,550.00 -1,365.00 11.9%
433 · Ledgers / Books 4,828.00 15,333.00 -10,505.00 31.5%

Total 5-112 · Town Clerk 5,037.85 16,883.00 -11,845.15 29.8%

5-114 · Treasurer
204 · Contract Auditors 0.00 36,789.00 -36,789.00 0.0%
304 · Mileage/Dues/Education 132.89 280.00 -147.11 47.5%
454 · Other Expenses - Town Report 0.00 1,300.00 -1,300.00 0.0%

Total 5-114 · Treasurer 132.89 38,369.00 -38,236.11 0.3%

5-116 · Assessor
205 · Board of Appeals 65.65 1,900.00 -1,834.35 3.5%
305 · Mileage/Conference/Dues 1,360.90 2,300.00 -939.10 59.2%
405 · Binding/DMV Expense 250.00 1,950.00 -1,700.00 12.8%
435 · Ledger/Maps 0.00 10,450.00 -10,450.00 0.0%
436-2 · Vision & Software System 3,553.50 4,500.00 -946.50 79.0%

Total 5-116 · Assessor 5,230.05 21,100.00 -15,869.95 24.8%

5-118 · Tax Collector
306 · Mileage/Conference/Dues 145.49 2,450.00 -2,304.51 5.9%
406 · Other Supplies 250.46 1,800.00 -1,549.54 13.9%
456 · Tax Bills 973.90 9,000.00 -8,026.10 10.8%
466 · DMV Expense 0.00 250.00 -250.00 0.0%

Total 5-118 · Tax Collector 1,369.85 13,500.00 -12,130.15 10.1%

5-122 · Registrar
207 · Election Workers 1,427.50 3,440.00 -2,012.50 41.5%
307 · Mileage/Conference/Dues 225.52 3,217.00 -2,991.48 7.0%
407 · Other Expense 33.26 400.00 -366.74 8.3%
457 · Election Expense 4,728.91 3,645.00 1,083.91 129.7%
467 · Canvass Expense 0.00 100.00 -100.00 0.0%

Total 5-122 · Registrar 6,415.19 10,802.00 -4,386.81 59.4%

5-126 · Town Counsel
202 · Labor Relations 357.50 4,000.00 -3,642.50 8.9%
208 · Town Issues 10,395.00 35,000.00 -24,605.00 29.7%

Total 5-126 · Town Counsel 10,752.50 39,000.00 -28,247.50 27.6%

5-134 · Town Office Operation
209 · Miscellaneous Services 149.33 400.00 -250.67 37.3%
211 · Town/commission printing 267.74 1,700.00 -1,432.26 15.7%
212 · Town/commission advertising 992.25 5,000.00 -4,007.75 19.8%
249 · Copier Cost 4,515.63 8,500.00 -3,984.37 53.1%
259 · Cleaning and Cleaning Supplies 1,268.13 5,250.00 -3,981.87 24.2%
269 · Water Treatment 3,530.62 4,800.00 -1,269.38 73.6%
299 · Computer Expense 45,597.82 52,860.00 -7,262.18 86.3%
409 · Other Expense - Office 4,524.97 8,000.00 -3,475.03 56.6%
479 · Payroll Services 486.21 8,000.00 -7,513.79 6.1%
499 · Postage 1,013.88 11,800.00 -10,786.12 8.6%

Total 5-134 · Town Office Operation 62,346.58 106,310.00 -43,963.42 58.6%

5:37 PM Town of Salem - General Fund
12/06/21 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July through November 2021

Page 2



Jul - Nov 21 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

5-135 · Building/Grounds Maintenance
210 · Building/Grounds Contract 4,736.00 9,900.00 -5,164.00 47.8%
608 · Exterminator contract 1,684.00 2,700.00 -1,016.00 62.4%
609 · Grounds/Building Maintenance 22,312.65 36,600.00 -14,287.35 61.0%
6135 · Quarterly Water Testing 0.00 3,500.00 -3,500.00 0.0%

Total 5-135 · Building/Grounds Maintenance 28,732.65 52,700.00 -23,967.35 54.5%

5-138 · Employee Benefits
800 · Employer FICA Contribution 29,653.86 80,227.00 -50,573.14 37.0%
801 · Employer Medicare Contribution 6,935.18 18,762.00 -11,826.82 37.0%
802 · Medical/Dental/Life Insurance 104,283.69 261,440.00 -157,156.31 39.9%
803 · Employer Pension Contribution 20,032.35 64,731.00 -44,698.65 30.9%
804 · Unemployment Compensation 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%
805 · Firemen Awards 0.00 8,250.00 -8,250.00 0.0%

Total 5-138 · Employee Benefits 160,905.08 434,410.00 -273,504.92 37.0%

5-140 · Utilities
700 · Telephone Town Hall 1,601.05 7,000.00 -5,398.95 22.9%
702 · Telephone Library 1,686.87 2,400.00 -713.13 70.3%
703 · Telephone GLVFCO 966.03 2,900.00 -1,933.97 33.3%
704 · Telephone SVFCO 2,144.23 2,800.00 -655.77 76.6%
706 · Telephone Transfer Station 289.14 650.00 -360.86 44.5%
707 · Mobil Phone Public Works 1,439.52 4,000.00 -2,560.48 36.0%
708 · Mobile Phone SVFCO 410.92 2,300.00 -1,889.08 17.9%
709 · Heat Center School 130.60 900.00 -769.40 14.5%
710 · Heat Town Hall 1,122.70 7,900.00 -6,777.30 14.2%
712 · Heat - New Library 175.37 11,000.00 -10,824.63 1.6%
713 · Heat GLVFCO 1,348.86 6,100.00 -4,751.14 22.1%
714 · Heat SVFCO 348.39 7,100.00 -6,751.61 4.9%
715 · Heat Public Works 627.15 6,200.00 -5,572.85 10.1%
720 · Electricity Town Hall 3,493.24 13,980.00 -10,486.76 25.0%
721 · Electric Old Library 181.64 600.00 -418.36 30.3%
722 · Electric New Library 4,364.02 14,900.00 -10,535.98 29.3%
723 · Electric GLFCO 2,312.36 7,800.00 -5,487.64 29.6%
724 · Electric SVFCO 2,600.04 9,200.00 -6,599.96 28.3%
725 · Electric Public Works 3,784.52 11,000.00 -7,215.48 34.4%
726 · Electric Transfer Station 555.51 3,200.00 -2,644.49 17.4%
727 · Electric Recreation Fields 550.34 1,980.00 -1,429.66 27.8%
730 · Gas Security/Fire Marshall 254.94 600.00 -345.06 42.5%
733 · Gas GLVFCO/Ambulance 3,034.26 7,000.00 -3,965.74 43.3%
734 · Gas SVFCO 1,409.09 4,100.00 -2,690.91 34.4%
735 · Gas Public Works 7,255.86 19,982.00 -12,726.14 36.3%
737 · T B Allocated-Fuel Use 8,756.02 0.00 8,756.02 100.0%

Total 5-140 · Utilities 50,842.67 155,592.00 -104,749.33 32.7%

5-152 · Town Services
810 · Historical Society 0.00 300.00 -300.00 0.0%
811 · Cemeteries 900.00 1,000.00 -100.00 90.0%
812 · Senior Services 2,601.16 11,840.00 -9,238.84 22.0%
813 · Gardner Lake Authority 2,000.00 10,000.00 -8,000.00 20.0%
814 · Health Services 27,383.58 34,520.00 -7,136.42 79.3%
815 · Memorial Day 0.00 600.00 -600.00 0.0%
816 · Farmer's Market/Community Event 1,053.46 3,500.00 -2,446.54 30.1%
817 · ACO Agreement 3,181.90 13,290.00 -10,108.10 23.9%
826 · Planning Services 12,294.11 40,000.00 -27,705.89 30.7%

Total 5-152 · Town Services 49,414.21 115,050.00 -65,635.79 43.0%

5-157 · Regional Services
820 · Womens center 750.00 700.00 50.00 107.1%
821 · TVCCA 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 100.0%
822 · Adult Education 0.00 4,400.00 -4,400.00 0.0%
824 · Region Probate 0.00 3,650.00 -3,650.00 0.0%
825 · SECTER 1,452.85 1,453.00 -0.15 100.0%
828 · Homeless Shelter 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%

Total 5-157 · Regional Services 3,202.85 12,203.00 -9,000.15 26.2%

5-158 · Library Department
015 · Equipment 4,888.86 7,300.00 -2,411.14 67.0%
315 · Mileage/Conference/Dues 697.64 1,400.00 -702.36 49.8%
415 · Other Expenses 681.83 2,000.00 -1,318.17 34.1%
458 · Supplies 1,346.71 3,700.00 -2,353.29 36.4%
515 · Circulation Materials 6,547.94 18,150.00 -11,602.06 36.1%
615 · Bibilomation Service Fee 5,654.00 5,660.00 -6.00 99.9%

Total 5-158 · Library Department 19,816.98 38,210.00 -18,393.02 51.9%

5-210 · Security
016 · Equipment 7,169.00 1,500.00 5,669.00 477.9%
216 · Resident Trooper Contract 0.00 363,000.00 -363,000.00 0.0%
416 · Other Expense 0.00 800.00 -800.00 0.0%
616 · Maintenance 0.00 800.00 -800.00 0.0%

Total 5-210 · Security 7,169.00 366,100.00 -358,931.00 2.0%

5:37 PM Town of Salem - General Fund
12/06/21 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July through November 2021

Page 3



Jul - Nov 21 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

5-220 · Gardner Lake Fire Company
436 · GLFD Chief's Account 502.38 2,500.00 -1,997.62 20.1%

Total 5-220 · Gardner Lake Fire Company 502.38 2,500.00 -1,997.62 20.1%

5-222 · Salem Volunteer Fire Co
013 · GLVFC Fire Fighting Equipment 476.22 3,500.00 -3,023.78 13.6%
018 · SVFC Fire Fighting Equipment 611.09 6,500.00 -5,888.91 9.4%
217 · GLVFC Professional Fees 196.55 3,400.00 -3,203.45 5.8%
218 · SVFC Professional Fees 1,576.57 4,200.00 -2,623.43 37.5%
222 · SVFC Physicals 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%
225 · GLVFC Physicals 675.00 6,000.00 -5,325.00 11.3%
432 · GLVFC Fire Wells 233.28 1,000.00 -766.72 23.3%
437 · SVFC Medical Supplies 574.59 1,200.00 -625.41 47.9%
438 · SVFC Chief's Account 1,009.35 3,000.00 -1,990.65 33.6%
477 · SVFC Expendables 1,954.45 5,500.00 -3,545.55 35.5%
478 · GLVCF Expendables 769.70 3,700.00 -2,930.30 20.8%
517 · GLVFC Training 0.00 8,000.00 -8,000.00 0.0%
518 · SVFC Training 1,550.59 7,800.00 -6,249.41 19.9%
527 · GLVFC Insurance 26,903.00 27,000.00 -97.00 99.6%
529 · SVFC Insurance 28,042.00 30,000.00 -1,958.00 93.5%
612 · GLVFC Repair/Maint Vehicle 3,111.00 8,500.00 -5,389.00 36.6%
614 · GLVFC Testing 1,320.28 8,975.00 -7,654.72 14.7%
618 · SVFC Repair/Maint Vehicles 18,706.01 21,000.00 -2,293.99 89.1%
619 · SVFC Testing 2,856.97 5,500.00 -2,643.03 51.9%
622 · SVFC Radio Repair 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%
629 · GLVFC Radio Repair 526.00 3,500.00 -2,974.00 15.0%
829 · GLVFC Building Maint 3,549.00 3,335.00 214.00 106.4%

Total 5-222 · Salem Volunteer Fire Co 94,641.65 171,610.00 -76,968.35 55.1%

5-230 · Ambulance
019 · Equipment 5,067.32 6,385.00 -1,317.68 79.4%
519 · Training 1,438.27 9,800.00 -8,361.73 14.7%
531 · Insurance 5,301.00 8,500.00 -3,199.00 62.4%
605 · Biohazard Medical Transport 0.00 700.00 -700.00 0.0%
623 · Radio Repair 216.13 3,500.00 -3,283.87 6.2%
624 · Repair/Maintenance 11,445.42 16,000.00 -4,554.58 71.5%
919 · Uniforms 496.60 1,800.00 -1,303.40 27.6%

Total 5-230 · Ambulance 23,964.74 46,685.00 -22,720.26 51.3%

5-240 · Public Safety
020 · Communication Equipment 1,033.00 8,000.00 -6,967.00 12.9%
220 · 911 Emergency Contract 14,437.87 21,200.00 -6,762.13 68.1%
420 · Fire Marshall Expene 1,141.73 3,600.00 -2,458.27 31.7%
421 · Civil Preparedness Expense 5,008.14 12,400.00 -7,391.86 40.4%
625 · Alarm Maintenance 1,680.00 7,000.00 -5,320.00 24.0%
920 · Fire Police 2,067.58 5,000.00 -2,932.42 41.4%
951 · Fire Training Building 0.00 1,600.00 -1,600.00 0.0%
960 · Gear FF/EMT 1,035.99 17,850.00 -16,814.01 5.8%
970 · On-Call Nominal Fee 21,520.00 50,000.00 -28,480.00 43.0%

Total 5-240 · Public Safety 47,924.31 126,650.00 -78,725.69 37.8%

5-310 · Public Works
021 · Small & Gas Powered Equipment 4,951.71 9,200.00 -4,248.29 53.8%
023 · Repair/Maint Vehicles 39,969.81 64,500.00 -24,530.19 62.0%
026 · Mech Equipment/Tools 10,362.59 10,000.00 362.59 103.6%
439 · Materials 17,707.40 23,000.00 -5,292.60 77.0%
441 · Snow Removal Supplies 4,610.13 66,210.00 -61,599.87 7.0%
633 · Field Maintenance 673.66 14,600.00 -13,926.34 4.6%
634 · Oil/Road Repairs 20,734.24 67,000.00 -46,265.76 30.9%
921 · Engineering Expense 3,140.00 4,800.00 -1,660.00 65.4%
923 · Uniform/ Meals 1,434.53 6,850.00 -5,415.47 20.9%

Total 5-310 · Public Works 103,584.07 266,160.00 -162,575.93 38.9%

5-410 · Transfer Station
241 · Management Contract 32,704.02 69,000.00 -36,295.98 47.4%
442 · Operating Costs 189.28 3,900.00 -3,710.72 4.9%
541 · Trash Bags 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.0%
627 · Maintenance/Improvements 1,285.00 4,000.00 -2,715.00 32.1%
628 · Water Testing 2,529.20 4,300.00 -1,770.80 58.8%
922 · Engineering 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%
931 · Bulky Waste Tipping 3,789.98 6,500.00 -2,710.02 58.3%
932 · Trash  Tipping CRRA 8,877.00 32,000.00 -23,123.00 27.7%
933 · Trash Hauling 4,282.24 8,000.00 -3,717.76 53.5%
934 · Bulky Waste Hauling 3,839.00 5,500.00 -1,661.00 69.8%
935 · Recyclable Hauling 7,548.66 28,000.00 -20,451.34 27.0%
936 · Toxic Waste 3,082.50 4,900.00 -1,817.50 62.9%

Total 5-410 · Transfer Station 68,126.88 178,100.00 -109,973.12 38.3%

5-600 · Economic Development
223 · Consulting 0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.0%
323 · Dues/Conference 0.00 100.00 -100.00 0.0%
498 · Mailings/Materials 348.36 1,300.00 -951.64 26.8%

Total 5-600 · Economic Development 348.36 1,900.00 -1,551.64 18.3%

5:37 PM Town of Salem - General Fund
12/06/21 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July through November 2021

Page 4



Jul - Nov 21 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

5-610 · Inland Wetlands/CC
261 · Legal Services 0.00 1,300.00 -1,300.00 0.0%
324 · Conference 0.00 200.00 -200.00 0.0%
523 · GIS Expense 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 100.0%
525 · WEO Mileage 94.64 100.00 -5.36 94.6%
941 · Engineering 0.00 750.00 -750.00 0.0%

Total 5-610 · Inland Wetlands/CC 1,094.64 3,350.00 -2,255.36 32.7%

5-630 · Planning and Zoning
224 · Legal Services 8,207.50 10,000.00 -1,792.50 82.1%
325 · Mileage/Conference 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%
425 · Other Expenses 1,267.00 1,500.00 -233.00 84.5%
430 · Planning of Conservation & Deve 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%
924 · Engineering 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%

Total 5-630 · Planning and Zoning 9,474.50 19,500.00 -10,025.50 48.6%

5-640 · Zoning Board of Appeals
226 · Zoning Board of Appeals 153.75 800.00 -646.25 19.2%

Total 5-640 · Zoning Board of Appeals 153.75 800.00 -646.25 19.2%

5-645 · Recreation Commission
645 · Maintenance 11,100.59 11,500.00 -399.41 96.5%
927 · Salem Recreation Assoc Programs 1,978.31 11,300.00 -9,321.69 17.5%
928 · Holiday Activities 443.55 2,800.00 -2,356.45 15.8%
929 · Community Out Reach/Other Expen 1,328.35 1,500.00 -171.65 88.6%
945 · Weekend School Access 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%
946 · Fee Base Activities 8,598.00 15,000.00 -6,402.00 57.3%

Total 5-645 · Recreation Commission 23,448.80 47,100.00 -23,651.20 49.8%

5-710 · Municipal Insurance
571 · Insurance 61,133.02 126,558.00 -65,424.98 48.3%
572 · Insurance - Tanks, Bond, Crime 0.00 9,090.00 -9,090.00 0.0%

Total 5-710 · Municipal Insurance 61,133.02 135,648.00 -74,514.98 45.1%

5-810 · Unanticipated Expenses
830 · Unanticipated 513.65 1,000.00 -486.35 51.4%

Total 5-810 · Unanticipated Expenses 513.65 1,000.00 -486.35 51.4%

5-910 · Interest Payments
992 · 2012 School Rev Bond Interest 44,281.25 82,063.00 -37,781.75 54.0%

Total 5-910 · Interest Payments 44,281.25 82,063.00 -37,781.75 54.0%

5-920 · Principal Payable
000 · School Bond Payment 325,000.00 325,000.00 0.00 100.0%

Total 5-920 · Principal Payable 325,000.00 325,000.00 0.00 100.0%

5-925 · Capital Non-Recurring Account
0010 · Transfers to CIP 1,130,972.00 1,130,972.00 0.00 100.0%
0925 · Capital Reserve Account 0.00 1.00 -1.00 0.0%

Total 5-925 · Capital Non-Recurring Account 1,130,972.00 1,130,973.00 -1.00 100.0%

5-926 · Open Space/Land Acquisition
996 · Open Space 0.00 1.00 -1.00 0.0%

Total 5-926 · Open Space/Land Acquisition 0.00 1.00 -1.00 0.0%

5-935 · Revaluation
295 · Revaluation 0.00 22,000.00 -22,000.00 0.0%

Total 5-935 · Revaluation 0.00 22,000.00 -22,000.00 0.0%

Total Expense 6,244,565.98 16,373,682.00 -10,129,116.02 38.1%

Net Ordinary Income 2,185,575.95 -694,376.00 2,879,951.95 -314.8%

Net Income 2,185,575.95 -694,376.00 2,879,951.95 -314.8%

5:37 PM Town of Salem - General Fund
12/06/21 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis July through November 2021

Page 5



2022 Board of Finance ~ List of Meetings 
The Board meets every second Thursday each month ~  

Additional scheduled meetings are included for Budget Review & Preparation 

 

January 13, 2022 7:00 PM 

 

January 27, 2022 7:00 PM 

 

February 10, 2022 7:00 PM 

 

February 24, 2022   7:00 PM 

 

March 10, 2022    7:00 PM 

 

March 17, 2022 7:00 PM 

 

March  24, 2022 7:00 PM 

 

April 13, 2022 7:00 PM  Wed. - Public Hearing 22/23 Budget @ Salem School  

                                 

April 14, 2022  7:00 PM 

 

May 12, 2022  7:00 PM  Wed. - Town Meeting to consider 2022/2023 Budget @ Salem School 

 

May 18, 2022  6:00 AM – 8:00 PM Wed. - Referendum for 2022/2023 Budget @ Town Hall 

 

May 19, 2022  7:00 PM 

 

June 9, 2022  7:00 PM 

 

July 14, 2022  7:00 PM 

 

August 11, 2022 7:00 PM 

 

September 8, 2022 7:00 PM 

 

October 13, 2022 7:00 PM 

 

November 10, 2022 7:00 PM 

 

December 8, 2022 7:00 PM 

 

January 12, 2023 7:00 PM 

 



SALEM BOARD OF FINANCE 
SCHEDULE FOR 2022-2023 BUDGET MEETINGS 

SALEM TOWN OFFICE BUILDING 
7:00 P.M. 

 
JANUARY 13 , 2022  

1.) AGENDA 
2.) CAPITAL EXPENDITURE REVIEW AND ACTION 

 
 
JANUARY 27, 2022  
          ACT ON PROPOSED APPROPRIATIONS FOR 2022-2023 

 
A.) #930 CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 
B.) 10 YEAR CAPITAL PLAN   

 
FEBRUARY 10, 2022  
 
     1.) AGENDA 
     2.) ACT ON PROPOSED APPROPRIATIONS FOR 2022-2023 
 

A.) #110 BUILDING OFFICAL 
B.) #112 TOWN CLERK’S DEPARTMENT 
C.) #114 TREASURER/AUDITOR/BOF 
D.)      #122 REGISTRAR-ELECTIONS      
E.)      #645 RECREATION COMMISSION 
F.) #210 SECURITY 
G.) #222 SALEM VOLUNTEER FIRE CO. 
H.) #240 PUBLIC SAFETY 
 I.) #910 INTEREST PAYMENTS 
J.) #920 PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS 

 
FEBRUARY 24, 2022  
           ACT ON PROPOSED APPROPRIATIONS FOR 2022-2023 

 
A.) #116 ASSESSOR  
B.) #118   TAX COLLECTOR 
C.) #158 LIBRARY 
D.)      #220   GARDNER LAKE FIRE CO. 
E.) #230   AMBULANCE 
F.)      #600  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
G.) #610 INLANDS WETLANDS &  CONSERVATION COMMISSION 
H.) #630 PLANNING AND ZONING 
 I.) #640 ZONING BOARD OF APPEAL 
J.)      #710 MUNICIPAL INSURANCE 
K.)     #810 UNANTICIPATED EXPENSES 
L.) #935 REVALUATION 
 

 
 
 
 



 
MARCH 10, 2022   
            ACT ON PROPOSED APPROPRIATIONS FOR 2022-2023 

 
A.) BOARD OF EDUCATION BUDGET 
B.)      REVENUES 

 
 
MARCH 17, 2022  
      1.) AGENDA 
      2.) ACT ON PROPOSED APPROPRIATIONS FOR 2022-2023 
 
  A.) #100 SELECTMAN’S DEPARTMENT 

B.) #126 TOWN COUNSEL 
C.) #134 TOWN OFFICE BUILDING 
D.)     #135 MUNICIPAL BUILDING MAINTENANCE 
E.) #138   EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
F.) #140  UTILITIES 
G.) #152   TOWN SERVICES  
H.) #157 REGIONAL SERVICES 
 I.) #310 PUBLIC WORKS 
J.) #410 TRANSFER STATION 
K.) #105 SALARIES 
L.) #925 CAPITAL RESERVE 
M.) #926   OPEN SPACE LAND 

 
MARCH 24, 2022  
           ACT ON PROPOSED APPROPRIATIONS FOR 2022-2023 

 
A.) TABLED ITEMS 
B.) FINALIZE BUDGET FOR PUBLIC HEARING 

 
APRIL 13, 2022    PUBLIC HEARING FOR 2022-2023 BUDGET @ SALEM SCHOOL 

 
APRIL 14, 2022  
     1.) AGENDA 
     2.) FINALIZE BUDGET FOR TOWN MEETING 
 
 
MAY 12, 2022   TOWN MEETING TO CONSIDER 2022-2023 BUDGET 
 
MAY 18, 2022   REFERENDUM ON 2022-2023 BUDGET 
 
 
MAY 19, 2022  
 
     1.) AGENDA 
     2.) DISCUSS REFERENDUM RESULTS AND SET MIL RATE  



Summary Board of Education December 9, 2021 Regular Meeting 

 

 

Deb drooped off the handout from last night’s meeting for Lisa to include in the packet.  

Brian has included a lot of good financial information in it.  That information is not 

repeated here. 

 

The IT services are divided between T B & G and Learn.  T B & G handles hardware, 

network and infrastructure.  The T B & G staff member assigned to Salem (Scott) is 

available to the staff 24/7.  Learn handles the things that Sharon Dugger did (The school 

was not able to find 1 person who had all of her skills for a reasonable price.) The two 

vendors work hand in hand. Learn is responsible for all of the student data services.  

There are 3 components covered bu Learn contractors.  Powerschool support is for the 

software that is used to run the school – things like report card and records.  Software 

support is for configuring software and supporting users.  The third part is big picture 

analytics.  That service is not turning out to be very useful to the school.  They are in the 

process of renegotiating the contract with Learn, to better tailor the services to Salem’s 

needs. 

 

The Rec Commission and Baseball League have donated new scoreboard to the school 

with conversion boards.  These will make the scoreboards in the gym more accessible to 

the younger students.  The total value of the donation is $6633.00. 

 

The school is in the process of completing a school climate survey.  A far greater number 

of responses have been received than were received when this was done 2 years ago.  

The survey has 3 components – parents, teachers and students.  The parents portion has 

closed.  So far the results are quite positive. 

 

Business manager report:  The unencumbered fund balance is currently $610,200 – 

5.52%.  This is above previous years, but the busing expenses are eating into it. 

 

Line item transfers:   

 The audits line ($2505) was due to the new auditor fees.  BOE did not have the  

  new fees when they were developing the budget. 

 The over time for office staff (231.42) is for time insuring that all students are  

  safely cleared from the school during dismissal busing. 

 

Oil tank replacement: The new tank has been installed and the old underground tank was 

removed on 11/29.  The school is awaiting the results of the soil samples.   

 

Milestone Video Surveillance System Expansion:  Three bids were received.  Only 2 of 

the vendors are capable of handling all of our security systems.  It is seen as important to 



to have the same people handling all of the related systems.  The current provider, 

Sonitrol was the low bid of of the two acceptable vendors. 

 

Gym Sound System:  The vendor that the BOE had selected was on the the State Bid 

List.  They are no longer on the list.  It may be necessary to go out to bid before this 

contract can be awarded.   

 

Long Range Capital Plan:  The school has had slow response from vendors in getting 

the bids for the 10 Year Capital Plan.  The supply chain issues are making the process 

difficult.  The bids are now all in, and they will be submitting it.   

• There is only 1 new item on the plan for 2022-23.  The school traffic flashers on 

Rt 85 are not functioning well.  This is seen as a need, not a want as it is a safety 

issue.  The cost is $16,490.  The school is not sure whose capital budget this 

belongs in.  They included it in their section and provided the estimate.  Where it 

ends up can be decided by the combined boards. 

• At this time they did not include the request for library shelving, as the view it as 

a want, not a need. 

Teacher Contract Negotiation:  Today is is the last day for negotiating a contract 

agreement.  If an agreement is not reached, the process moves into the Mediation phase. 

Early Notice of Retirement:  The BOE authorized the superintendent and business 

manager to negotiate and enter into an agreement with the unions.  It would take the 

form of a Memorandum Of Understanding.  Typically, staff notify the school of their 

intent to retire at the end of the school year.  This makes it very difficult to do anything 

other than back fill the existing positions.  If notice is provided early in the year (e.g. 

January) , there is time to consider other staff configurations.  It is difficult to do this 

once schedules are set for the students.  A possible approach is to pay a fee ($10-20) for 

each of the teacher’s remaining vacation day at the end of the year.  Teachers can still 

notify after the deadline; they just won’t get the incentive. 

 

Non-lapsing account:  The school is reviewing the plans for 11 CT school districts.  

They range from a single paragraph authorizing the account to a multi-page document 

between BOE and BOF.  Some schools give full control to BOE.  Others allow accrual 

of funds but require BOF approval to expend them.  Some explicitly call out what the 

funds can be used for.  The regulations allow accruing 2% of the current budget.  There 

can be a cap on the total amount in the fund – typically 3-5% of the most recent budget.  

Any plan would need to be worked out between BOE and BOF 

 

 

 

 













































































































































































12/7/211:16 PM

1

BOE
Budget Year Work Area Project Approved Status/Rationale

2021-2022

2022 - 2023 (Capital)
1 1994 addition Replace Roof & A/C Units $100,000 BOF funding for approved roof replacement
2 Site Town of Salem Emergency Shelter Generator $318,755 previously $82,500
3 Site   Network Upgrades -Switches & Access Points $109,768
4 1994 addition Replace Corridor Lockers $63,450 previously $41,190
5 Site Front & Back Lot - Pave,Mill,Stripe, Curbing $186,300
6 Security Fire Alarm Up-grade $78,444
7 1994 Addition Wall Padding - Multipurpose Rm & Gym $26,700
8 Site School Zone Traffic Signals $16,490 new addition 11/2021

TOTAL 2022-23 $899,907

2023 - 2024 (Capital)
1 1994 addition Replace Roof & A/C Units $100,000
2 Site Network Upgrades $105,000
3 1994 addition Replace 1994 Boilers $75,000
4 Site Generator Replacement $0 previously $82,500, revised cost in 22-23

TOTAL 2023-24 $280,000

2024 - 2025 (Capital)
1 1994 addition Replace Roof & A/C Units $100,000
2 1994 addition Bathroom Renovations $95,000

TOTAL 2024-25 $195,000

2025 - 2026 (Capital)
1 1994 addition Replace Roof & A/C Units $100,000

TOTAL 2025-26 $100,000

2026 - 2027 (Capital)
1 1994 addition Replace Roof & A/C Units $100,000

TOTAL 2026-27 $100,000

SALEM SCHOOL 10 YEAR CAPITAL PLAN 2022-2023



12/7/211:16 PM

2

BOE
Budget Year Work Area Project Approved Status/Rationale

2021-2022

SALEM SCHOOL 10 YEAR CAPITAL PLAN 2022-2023

2027-2028 (Capital)

TOTAL 2027-28 $0

2028-2029 (Capital)

TOTAL 2028-29 $0

2029-2030 (Capital)

TOTAL 2029-30 $0

2030-2031 (Capital)

TOTAL 2030-31 $0

2031-2032 (Capital)

TOTAL 2030-31 $0

GRAND TOTAL $1,574,907





























Town of Salem

Capital Purchase Request

NOTE:  YOU MUST SUBMIT A FORM FOR EACH CAPITAL REQUEST

Date of request ___12/2/2021________________________________________

Requesting Department __Gardner Lake Volunteer Fire Company___________

Description of capital purchase:  __Replacement AED’s for Station 21, 27, Salem
School, Salem Library Public Works, & the two resident troopers _____________

What year is this requested for consideration:  ___2022/2023________________
Estimated cost per attached cost estimate(s):  ___$41,944__________________

Estimated annual cost to operate, and maintain purchase (e.g. long term
maintenance contracts)  _________$0.00_______________________________

Life expectancy of the equipment (in years) ______8 Years________________

Impact to the Town if not funded:  __The AED’s currently in use in the town were
purchased in 2010/2011 and are past their expected lifespan __________________
_______________________________________________________________
Identify how the Town is currently meeting this need.
_This capitol request will replace existing AED’s _____________________
_______________________________________________________________

Dept Contact Person:__Peter Silva ______________________________________
Phone Number:__(860) 867-6933 ______________________________________

1.  Project Title: __ Town AED Replacement _____

2.  Forms of Acquisition: ____X____ Purchase ________ Rental



Town of Salem

Capital Purchase Request

3.  Number of Units: __28______

4.  Cost: Per Unit Price or Annual Rental _$1,498_________________________
Plus:  Installation or Other Costs ______$00____________________________
Less:  Trade-in or Other ____________$00___________________________
Annual Maintenance cost ___________$00__________________________
Per Unit NET Cost ________________$1,498_________________________

5.  Total NET Purchase Cost of Expenditure:  _$41,944___________________

6.  Number of Similar Items in Inventory: ____________________________

7.  Equipment is:
( X ) Scheduled Replacement
(  ) Present Equipment Obsolete
(  ) Replace worn-out equipment
(  ) Reduce personnel time
(  ) Expended service
(  ) New Operation
( X ) Increased safety
(  ) Improve procedures, records, etc.

8.  Equipment Usage

__________ Weeks Per Year
__________ Months Per Year (if seasonal)
__________ Days Per Year
__________ Hours Per Day

Estimated Useful Life in Years: ___8______



9.  Replaced Item(s):  Prior Year’s
Item           Make          Age           Maint.          Cost Breakdowns        Rental Cost
__________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________

Town of Salem

Capital Purchase Request

10.  Recommended Disposition of Replacement Item(s):
____________________________________________
Trade-in:
____________________________________________
Sale:

11.  Possible use by other Departments/Commissions:  __Purchase will support
Salem School, Library, town hall, public works, & the two resident troopers____

Submitted By ___Peter Silva ________________________________________

Date ___12/2/2021_________________________________________________

Action taken by Board of Finance:

Approved for Fiscal Year _____________________________________________

Amount Approved ___________________________________________________

Disapproved, Reason Provided _________________________________________



Town of Salem

Capital Purchase Request

NOTE:  YOU MUST SUBMIT A FORM FOR EACH CAPITAL REQUEST

Date of request : 12/2/2021____________________________________

Requesting Department : Gardner Lake Volunteer Fire Company, Inc.

Description of capital purchase: Firefighting Turnout Gear and Hose_________

What year is this requested for consideration: Fiscal Year 2022/2023__________
Estimated cost per attached cost estimate(s):  ___$14,000_________________

Estimated annual cost to operate, and maintain purchase (e.g. long term
maintenance contracts) Minimal Cost to wash and inspect turnout gear.  Hose
maintenance will be covered under annual testing program _________________

Life expectancy of the equipment (in years) ___10 Years____________________

Impact to the Town if not funded: Turnout gear and fire hose are governed by
NFPA standards and OSHA regulations on personal protective equipment (PPE).
Using gear and equipment that is out of specification and/or not in compliance
with codes and regulations is a safety hazard to the user and a potential liability.
_______________________________________________________________
Identify how the Town is currently meeting this need.
_Turnout Gear and fire hose is replaced as it is found to be expired or damaged.
Gear that was used by past members is saved for potential reuse, however this is
not always possible due to sizing restrictions.  Fire hose is replaced as needed from
findings during the annual hose testing or damage during use.

Dept Contact Person: Chief Peter Silva________________________________
Phone Number: (860)867-6933_______________________________________

1.  Project Title: __GLVFC Turnout Gear and Hose Replacement____________

2.  Forms of Acquisition: _____X___ Purchase ________ Rental



Town of Salem

Capital Purchase Request

3.  Number of Units: ___1_____

4.  Cost: Per Unit Price or Annual Rental ____$14,000___________________
Plus:  Installation or Other Costs ______$0____________________________
Less:  Trade-in or Other ____________$0_____________________________
Annual Maintenance cost ___________$0_____________________________
Per Unit NET Cost ______________________________________________

5.  Total NET Purchase Cost of Expenditure:  ___$14,000_________________

6.  Number of Similar Items in Inventory: ______12______________________

7.  Equipment is:
(  ) Scheduled Replacement
(  ) Present Equipment Obsolete
( X ) Replace worn-out equipment
(  ) Reduce personnel time
(  ) Expended service
(  ) New Operation
( X ) Increased safety
(  ) Improve procedures, records, etc.

8.  Equipment Usage

___2_______ Weeks Per Year
____12______ Months Per Year (if seasonal)
__________ Days Per Year
__________ Hours Per Day

Estimated Useful Life in Years: ___10 Years per NFPA______



9.  Replaced Item(s):  Prior Year’s
Item           Make          Age           Maint.          Cost Breakdowns        Rental Cost
__________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________

Town of Salem

Capital Purchase Request

10.  Recommended Disposition of Replacement Item(s):
__ Turnout gear that is past its service date but still in usable condition is issued to
members for non-structural firefighting use at emergencies. _________________
Trade-in:
____________________________________________
Sale:

11.  Possible use by other Departments/Commissions:  _Turnout gear that is
past its service date but still in usable condition is issued to members for
non-structural firefighting use at emergencies.
_________________________________________________________________

Submitted By __Peter Silva, Chief GLVFC_____________________________

Date __12/2/2021__________________________________________________

Action taken by Board of Finance:

Approved for Fiscal Year _____________________________________________

Amount Approved ___________________________________________________

Disapproved, Reason Provided _________________________________________



Town of Salem

Capital Purchase Request

NOTE:  YOU MUST SUBMIT A FORM FOR EACH CAPITAL REQUEST

Date of request __12/03/21_____________________________

Requesting Department ________RECREATION___________________

Description of capital purchase:  ______Dog Park_____

What year is this requested for consideration:  _____2022-2023_______
Estimated cost per attached cost estimate(s):  ______$20000-$25000___________

Estimated annual cost to operate, and maintain purchase (e.g. long term 
maintenance contracts)  _________$1000/year___________________

Life expectancy of the equipment (in years) ______50_________

Impact to the Town if not funded:  ____No viable outdoor dog walking option in 
Town where we can create a safe and social spot for Dog owners 
Identify how the Town is currently meeting this need. 
____________Recreation trail, Salem roads, and other Hiking trails in Town but 
these do not cater to pets or animal waste devices/receptacles___________
_______________________________________________________________

Dept Contact Person:________Alan Maziarz_______________
Phone Number:_________860-373-1155_______________________

1.  Project Title:  ________ Dog Park

2.  Forms of Acquisition:  __X___ Purchase ________ Rental



Town of Salem

Capital Purchase Request

3.  Number of Units: _1___

4.  Cost: Per Unit Price or Annual Rental __________$20000-$25000_______
Plus:  Installation or Other Costs _________$20000-$25000
Less:  Trade-in or Other _______________N/A_____________________
Annual Maintenance cost ______________$1000______________________
Per Unit NET Cost ____________$21000-$26000______________

5.  Total NET Purchase Cost of Expenditure:  _____$21000- $25000____

6.  Number of Similar Items in Inventory: _________________1__________

7.  Equipment is:
(  ) Scheduled Replacement
(  ) Present Equipment Obsolete
(  ) Replace worn-out equipment
(  ) Reduce personnel time
(  ) Expended service
(X) New Operation
(  ) Increased safety
(  ) Improve procedures, records, etc. 

8.  Equipment Usage

___52____ Weeks Per Year
___12_____ Months Per Year (if seasonal)
___7_____ Days Per Year
___12_____ Hours Per Day

Estimated Useful Life in Years: ___50____

9.  Replaced Item(s):  Prior Year’s 
Item           Make          Age           Maint.          Cost Breakdowns        Rental Cost
__________________________________________________________________
_N/A______________________________________________________________



__________________________________________________________________

Town of Salem

Capital Purchase Request

10.  Recommended Disposition of Replacement Item(s):
____________N/A______________________________
Trade-in: 
____________N/A____________________________
Sale: 

11.  Possible use by other Departments/Commissions:  __All Commissions, 
Departments and Salem citizens that are interested in healthy recreation 
options_______________________________

Submitted By _______________Alan Maziarz____________________

Date _______________________12/3/2021_______________________

Action taken by Board of Finance:

Approved for Fiscal Year _____________________________________________

Amount Approved ___________________________________________________

Disapproved, Reason Provided _________________________________________



Town of Salem

Capital Purchase Request

NOTE:  YOU MUST SUBMIT A FORM FOR EACH CAPITAL REQUEST

Date of request __12/03/21_____________________________

Requesting Department ________RECREATION___________________

Description of capital purchase:  ______Pavilion Storage Shed_____

What year is this requested for consideration:  _____2022-2023_______
Estimated cost per attached cost estimate(s):  ______$3000-$5000___________

Estimated annual cost to operate, and maintain purchase (e.g. long term 
maintenance contracts)  _________$0___________________

Life expectancy of the equipment (in years) ______50yrs_________

Impact to the Town if not funded:  ________Added manual labor to store Disc 
Golf items and/or Lost & Found materials
Identify how the Town is currently meeting this need. 
____________Discs piled on Pavilion picnic tables, not ideal___________
_______________________________________________________________

Dept Contact Person:________Alan Maziarz_______________
Phone Number:_________860-373-1155_______________________

1.  Project Title:  ________Pavilion Storage Shed____________________

2.  Forms of Acquisition:  __X___ Purchase ________ Rental



Town of Salem

Capital Purchase Request

3.  Number of Units: _1___

4.  Cost: Per Unit Price or Annual Rental __________$3000-$5000_______
Plus:  Installation or Other Costs _________N/A as it is included_______
Less:  Trade-in or Other _______________N/A_____________________
Annual Maintenance cost ______________N/A______________________
Per Unit NET Cost ____________$3000-$5000______________

5.  Total NET Purchase Cost of Expenditure:  _____$3000-$5000____

6.  Number of Similar Items in Inventory: _________________0__________

7.  Equipment is:
(  ) Scheduled Replacement
(  ) Present Equipment Obsolete
(  ) Replace worn-out equipment
(  ) Reduce personnel time
(  ) Expended service
(X) New Operation
(  ) Increased safety
(  ) Improve procedures, records, etc. 

8.  Equipment Usage

___52____ Weeks Per Year
___12_____ Months Per Year (if seasonal)
___7_____ Days Per Year
___12_____ Hours Per Day

Estimated Useful Life in Years: ___50____

9.  Replaced Item(s):  Prior Year’s 
Item           Make          Age           Maint.          Cost Breakdowns        Rental Cost
__________________________________________________________________
_N/A______________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________



Town of Salem

Capital Purchase Request

10.  Recommended Disposition of Replacement Item(s):
____________N/A______________________________
Trade-in: 
____________N/A____________________________
Sale: 

11.  Possible use by other Departments/Commissions:  __Storage by: Historical 
Society, Public Works_______________________________

Submitted By _______________Alan Maziarz____________________

Date ______________________________________________________________

Action taken by Board of Finance:

Approved for Fiscal Year _____________________________________________

Amount Approved ___________________________________________________

Disapproved, Reason Provided _________________________________________



Town of Salem

Capital Purchase Request

NOTE:  YOU MUST SUBMIT A FORM FOR EACH CAPITAL REQUEST

Date of request __12/03/21_____________________________

Requesting Department ________RECREATION___________________

Description of capital purchase:  ______Lou Ulfer’s Complex Walking Path_____

What year is this requested for consideration:  _____2022-2023_______
Estimated cost per attached cost estimate(s):  ______$10000-$15000___________

Estimated annual cost to operate, and maintain purchase (e.g. long term 
maintenance contracts)  _________$500/year___________________

Life expectancy of the equipment (in years) ______50_________

Impact to the Town if not funded:  ____We ultimately delay improvements to 
fitness options in Town and safety to our Town walkers by creating a walking path 
away from our town roads 
Identify how the Town is currently meeting this need. 
____________Recreation trail and other Hiking trails in Town, away from Lou 
Ulfer’s Complex___________
_______________________________________________________________

Dept Contact Person:________Alan Maziarz_______________
Phone Number:_________860-373-1155_______________________

1.  Project Title:  ________ Lou Ulfer’s Complex Walking Path

2.  Forms of Acquisition:  __X___ Purchase ________ Rental



Town of Salem

Capital Purchase Request

3.  Number of Units: _1___

4.  Cost: Per Unit Price or Annual Rental __________$10000-$15000_______
Plus:  Installation or Other Costs _________$10000-$15000
Less:  Trade-in or Other _______________N/A_____________________
Annual Maintenance cost ______________$500______________________
Per Unit NET Cost ____________$10500-$15500______________

5.  Total NET Purchase Cost of Expenditure:  _____$10500- $15500____

6.  Number of Similar Items in Inventory: _________________1__________

7.  Equipment is:
(  ) Scheduled Replacement
(  ) Present Equipment Obsolete
(  ) Replace worn-out equipment
(  ) Reduce personnel time
(  ) Expended service
(X) New Operation
(  ) Increased safety
(  ) Improve procedures, records, etc. 

8.  Equipment Usage

___52____ Weeks Per Year
___12_____ Months Per Year (if seasonal)
___7_____ Days Per Year
___12_____ Hours Per Day

Estimated Useful Life in Years: ___50____

9.  Replaced Item(s):  Prior Year’s 
Item           Make          Age           Maint.          Cost Breakdowns        Rental Cost
__________________________________________________________________



_N/A______________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________

Town of Salem

Capital Purchase Request

10.  Recommended Disposition of Replacement Item(s):
____________N/A______________________________
Trade-in: 
____________N/A____________________________
Sale: 

11.  Possible use by other Departments/Commissions:  __All Commissions, 
Departments and Salem citizens that are interested in healthy recreation 
options_______________________________

Submitted By _______________Alan Maziarz____________________

Date _______________________12/3/2021_______________________

Action taken by Board of Finance:

Approved for Fiscal Year _____________________________________________

Amount Approved ___________________________________________________

Disapproved, Reason Provided _________________________________________



To:   Board of Finance & Board of Selectmen 

From:  Registrars of Voters 

Date:  2 December 2021 

 

Re:  Capital Purchases for FY 2022-2023 

 

 

Last week the Registrars of Voters learned that the Town of Salem has been divided into two 

legislative districts as a result of redistricting.  The redistricting process is done every ten years 

following the federal census and we believe that this is the first time in living memory that the 

Town has been split in two.  Salem voters will now be in either the 34th or the 37th State Legislative 

District, depending upon the location of their residence.  The decision is final, there is no recourse, 

and implementation must begin immediately. 

 

Instead of having a single polling place for primaries and elections, Salem will have two polling 

places, one for each district.  Unfortunately, there is no public building in the newly created 37th 

district that is suitable as a polling place.  The Secretary of the State’s office and State Statutes 

confirm, however, that when no polling place exists in a district, that polling place can be located 

in an adjacent district.  Also, two polling places can be located in one facility as long as complete 

separation is maintained.  It is our hope, therefore, that we will be able to continue to use the main 

meeting room in Town Hall for both districts by dividing the room in half.  It conveniently lends 

itself to this arrangement as there are two entrances into and two exits out of the room. 

 

The current voting stations that have been in use for nearly 17 years must be replaced with more 

space-efficient models in order to accommodate this new arrangement.  We will be looking to 

purchase “cluster” type stations.  State law requires one voting station for every 250 voters.  

Presently, we have about 3,000 voters, which means that a minimum of twelve stations will be 

required. 

 

Redistricting will impact future budgets of the Registrars’ office to a great degree.  At this time, 

the voting stations appear to be the only expense eligible to be placed in Capital Purchases.  

Because of the short notice, we have no idea what the cost will be and we cannot even give an 

estimate.  As soon as the details are completed and estimates received, we will inform the pertinent 

authorities. 

 

 

Betsy B. Butts 

Doris Burr 

Registrars of Voters 

 

 



Town of Salem

Capital Purchase Request

NOTE:  YOU MUST SUBMIT A FORM FOR EACH CAPITAL REQUEST

Date of request: 12/2/2021

Requesting Department: Salem Volunteer Fire Company

Description of capital purchase: SCBA and Spare Bottles

What year is this requested for consideration: 2022
Estimated cost per attached cost estimate(s):  Air Pack $7,198.80, Bottles 
$1,306.20

Estimated annual cost to operate, and maintain purchase (e.g. long term 
maintenance contracts) Minimal, battery replacement $25 to $50 each pack

Life expectancy of the equipment (in years): 25 years

Impact to the Town if not funded:  Firefighters will not be able to fight fires, 
perform rescues or any other tasks in atmospheres that are in damage to health and 
live.
Identify how the Town is currently meeting this need. 
Use of current air packs that are currently 22 years old

Dept Contact Person: Chip Weston
Phone Number: 860-949-9984

1.  Project Title:  Fire Department SCBA replacements (SVFC and GLVFC)

2.  Forms of Acquisition:  ___X_____ Purchase ________ Rental



Town of Salem

Capital Purchase Request

3.  Number of Units: 36 for packs and 72 for bottles

4.  Cost: Per Unit Price or Annual Rental $7,198.80 for packs and $1,306.20 for 
bottles

Plus:  Installation or Other Costs: N/A
Less:  Trade-in or Other N/A
Annual Maintenance cost $25 to $50 / pack 
Per Unit NET Cost: Packs $7,248.00, bottles $1,306.20

5.  Total NET Purchase Cost of Expenditure:  $307,951.20

6.  Number of Similar Items in Inventory: 36 packs and 72 bottles

7.  Equipment is:
( X ) Scheduled Replacement (End of useful life is 25 years based on NFPA)
(  ) Present Equipment Obsolete
(  ) Replace worn-out equipment
(  ) Reduce personnel time
(  ) Expended service
(  ) New Operation
(  ) Increased safety
(  ) Improve procedures, records, etc. 

8.  Equipment Usage

___2_______ Weeks Per Year
__________ Months Per Year (if seasonal)
__________ Days Per Year
__________ Hours Per Day

Estimated Useful Life in Years: 25 years

9.  Replaced Item(s):  Prior Year’s 
Item           Make          Age           Maint.          Cost Breakdowns        Rental Cost



_None_____________________________________________________________
____
__________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________

Town of Salem

Capital Purchase Request

10.  Recommended Disposition of Replacement Item(s):
Trade-in: 
See if there is any trade in value

Sale: 

Obsolete, so no

11.  Possible use by other Departments/Commissions:  Just the Fire 
Department

Submitted By Chip Weston, Chief of SVFD

Date ______________________________________________________________

Action taken by Board of Finance:

Approved for Fiscal Year _____________________________________________

Amount Approved ___________________________________________________

Disapproved, Reason Provided _________________________________________



Town of Salem

Capital Purchase Request

NOTE:  YOU MUST SUBMIT A FORM FOR EACH CAPITAL REQUEST

Date of request: 12/2/2021

Requesting Department: Salem Volunteer Fire Company

Description of capital purchase: Warning Lights replacement for Tanker 121

What year is this requested for consideration: 2022
Estimated cost per attached cost estimate(s):  $10,000.00

Estimated annual cost to operate, and maintain purchase (e.g. long term 
maintenance contracts) None

Life expectancy of the equipment (in years): 25 years

Impact to the Town if not funded: Tanker will be out of compliance and town 
would be liable.
Current warning lights need to be replaced with up-to-date LED as the replacement 
lights are no longer available. We currently have one rear warning light that is non-
functionable and a replacement light can’t be found. Do to the different between 
the current electrical requirements of the current and proposed, all warning lights 
need to be replaced. (8 in total)

Identify how the Town is currently meeting this need. 
Use of current failing lights

Dept Contact Person: Chip Weston
Phone Number: 860-949-9984

1.  Project Title:  Warning Lights replacement for Tanker 121
2.  Forms of Acquisition:  ___X_____ Purchase ________ Rental



Town of Salem

Capital Purchase Request

3.  Number of Units: Warning Lights replacement for Tanker 121

4.  Cost: Per Unit Price or Annual Rental:  $10,000.00
Plus:  Installation or Other Costs: N/A
Less:  Trade-in or Other N/A
Annual Maintenance cost: None
Per Unit NET Cost: $10,000.00

5.  Total NET Purchase Cost of Expenditure:  $ 10,000.00

6.  Number of Similar Items in Inventory: One set of Warning lights and 
installation

7.  Equipment is:
(  ) Scheduled Replacement
(  ) Present Equipment Obsolete
( X ) Replace worn-out equipment
(  ) Reduce personnel time
(  ) Expended service
(  ) New Operation
(  ) Increased safety
(  ) Improve procedures, records, etc. 

8.  Equipment Usage

__________ Weeks Per Year
__________ Months Per Year (if seasonal)
____>100 _ Days Per Year
__________ Hours Per Day

Estimated Useful Life in Years: 25 years



9.  Replaced Item(s):  Prior Year’s 
Item           Make          Age           Maint.          Cost Breakdowns        Rental Cost
_None_____________________________________________________________
____
__________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________

Town of Salem

Capital Purchase Request

10.  Recommended Disposition of Replacement Item(s):
Trade-in: 
N/A

Sale: 

N/A

11.  Possible use by other Departments/Commissions:  Just the Fire 
Departments / Career Staff

Submitted By Chip Weston, Chief of SVFD

Date Dec 2, 2021

Action taken by Board of Finance:

Approved for Fiscal Year _____________________________________________

Amount Approved ___________________________________________________

Disapproved, Reason Provided _________________________________________



Town of Salem

Capital Purchase Request

NOTE:  YOU MUST SUBMIT A FORM FOR EACH CAPITAL REQUEST

Date of request: 12/2/2021

Requesting Department: Salem Volunteer Fire Company

Description of capital purchase: Reporting and inventory software

What year is this requested for consideration: 2022
Estimated cost per attached cost estimate(s):$12,000.00

Estimated annual cost to operate, and maintain purchase (e.g. long term 
maintenance contracts) None

Life expectancy of the equipment (in years): 10 years

Impact to the Town if not funded:  Will not be able to record and report on 
incidents, inventory, member records, maintenance, etc.

Identify how the Town is currently meeting this need. 
Use of current Fire House Software that will no longer be supported by vendor. 
(Software is obsolete and suggested replacement is a product provided by ESO)

Dept Contact Person: Chip Weston
Phone Number: 860-949-9984

1.  Project Title:  Reporting and Inventory Software

2.  Forms of Acquisition:  ___X_____ Purchase ________ Rental



Town of Salem

Capital Purchase Request

3.  Number of Units: One Unit to replacement of the existing Fire House 
Software.

4.  Cost: Per Unit Price or Annual Rental:  $12,000.00
Plus:  Installation or Other Costs: N/A
Less:  Trade-in or Other N/A
Annual Maintenance cost: None
Per Unit NET Cost: $12,000.00

5.  Total NET Purchase Cost of Expenditure:  $12,000.00

6.  Number of Similar Items in Inventory: One set of Warning lights and 
installation

7.  Equipment is:
(  ) Scheduled Replacement
(X ) Present Equipment Obsolete
(  ) Replace worn-out equipment
(  ) Reduce personnel time
(  ) Expended service
(  ) New Operation
(  ) Increased safety
(  ) Improve procedures, records, etc. 

8.  Equipment Usage

__________ Weeks Per Year
__________ Months Per Year (if seasonal)
   200- 250    Days Per Year
__________ Hours Per Day

Estimated Useful Life in Years: 10 years

9.  Replaced Item(s):  Prior Year’s 
Item           Make          Age           Maint.          Cost Breakdowns        Rental Cost



_None_____________________________________________________________
____
__________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________

Town of Salem

Capital Purchase Request

10.  Recommended Disposition of Replacement Item(s):
Trade-in: 
N/A

Sale: 

N/A

11.  Possible use by other Departments/Commissions:  Just the Salem Fire 
Company. Note: Can add on the GLVFC and/or Fire Marshall’s / Career 
Staff on for additional cost.

Submitted By Chip Weston, Chief of SVFD

Date Dec 2, 2021

Action taken by Board of Finance:

Approved for Fiscal Year _____________________________________________

Amount Approved ___________________________________________________

Disapproved, Reason Provided _________________________________________



Town of Salem 
 

Capital Purchase Request 
 

NOTE:  YOU MUST SUBMIT A FORM FOR EACH CAPITAL REQUEST 

 

Date of request: 12/2/2021 

 

Requesting Department: Salem Volunteer Fire Company 

 

Description of capital purchase: Fire Gear and Fire Hose 

 

What year is this requested for consideration: 2022 

Estimated cost per attached cost estimate(s): $13,000.00 

 

Estimated annual cost to operate, and maintain purchase (e.g. long term 

maintenance contracts) None 

 

Life expectancy of the equipment (in years): 10 years 

 

Impact to the Town if not funded:  May not have enough hose to support the needs 

of fire suppression.  

 

Identify how the Town is currently meeting this need.  

With the current hose, but after hose testing, 5 lengths of hose failed and need to be 

replaced. 

 

Dept Contact Person: Chip Weston 

Phone Number: 860-949-9984 

 

1.  Project Title:  Reporting and Inventory Software 

 

2.  Forms of Acquisition:  ___X_____ Purchase ________ Rental 

 

 

 

 

 



Town of Salem 
 

Capital Purchase Request 
 

3.  Number of Units: This varies from year to year, because of unplanned hose 

replacement. For 2021-22-year, hose testing failed two 100 foot lengths of 5 

inch and three 50 foot lengths of 3 inch hose  

 

4.  Cost: Per Unit Price or Annual Rental:  $13,,000.00 

Plus:  Installation or Other Costs: N/A 

Less:  Trade-in or Other N/A 

Annual Maintenance cost: None 

Per Unit NET Cost: $12,000.00 

5.  Total NET Purchase Cost of Expenditure:  $13,000.00 

6.  Number of Similar Items in Inventory: One set of Warning lights and 

installation 

7.  Equipment is: 

(  ) Scheduled Replacement 

(  ) Present Equipment Obsolete 

( X ) Replace worn-out equipment 

(  ) Reduce personnel time 

(  ) Expended service 

(  ) New Operation 

(  ) Increased safety 

(  ) Improve procedures, records, etc.  

 

8.  Equipment Usage 

__________ Weeks Per Year 

__________ Months Per Year (if seasonal) 

__________ Days Per Year 

Varies by need   Hours Per Day 

 

Estimated Useful Life in Years: 10 years 

 

9.  Replaced Item(s):  Prior Year’s  

Item           Make          Age           Maint.          Cost Breakdowns        Rental Cost 



_None_____________________________________________________________

____ 

__________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________ 

 

Town of Salem 
 

Capital Purchase Request 
 

 

10.  Recommended Disposition of Replacement Item(s): 

Trade-in:  

N/A 

 

Sale:  

N/A 

11.  Possible use by other Departments/Commissions:  The GLVFC and 

Career Staff on for additional cost. 

Submitted By Chip Weston, Chief of SVFD 

Date Dec 2, 2021 

 

 

Action taken by Board of Finance: 

Approved for Fiscal Year _____________________________________________ 

Amount Approved ___________________________________________________ 

Disapproved, Reason Provided _________________________________________ 



TO:              All Department Heads, Boards, and Commission Chairman’s  
 
FROM:        Skip Dickson, Chairman, Board of Finance  
 
SUBJECT:  2021-2022 Operating Budget 
 

 
 
The Board of Finance (BOF) has begun preparation of the 2021-2022 budget for the 

Town of Salem. This preparation requires cooperation of many Boards, Commissions and 
Departments within the town.  All Departments, Town Boards and Commissions requesting 
appropriations from town funds are required to submit proposed budgets to the Board of 
Finance.  Section X of the Charter for the Town of Salem describes the budget approval 
process and should be reviewed by anyone requesting Town funding.  Department Proposals 
should be submitted to the Finance Office and the First Selectman by January 15, 2021. A 
schedule of BOF meetings listing when each department’s budget will be considered by the 
BOF is attached.  A clear description of any expenditure changes and justification for all 
expenditures should be provided to the Finance Office at least one week prior to the Dept’s 
scheduled appearance before the BOF.   

 
Capital requests, anticipated through the year 2030/31, should have already been 

submitted for BOF approval to be included on the 10 Year Capital Plan.  These, and only 
these, capital items will be considered for inclusion into the Town’s Capital Plan.   

 
 The BOF has reviewed revenues expected from the State and we are unsure of the 
future picture, especially considering the added complexity of the Covid19 Pandemic.  We 
anticipate cuts or level funding for the upcoming year, in addition to unknown Covid19 
reimbursement funding or further related expenses.  The Town of Salem Grand List has 
increased only slightly, roughly 1.8%. Therefore, the BOF has established a goal of 
maintaining a flat and stable mill rate, only increasing appropriations that can be fully justified. 
This continues to be a time of meeting our needs, not of fulfilling our wants. Please be fully 
discretionary with your requests. 

 
In attempt to accomplish the goal of a stable mill rate, all Departments, Town Boards 

and Commissions are requested to  
 

• Evaluate needs based on actual costs not present appropriations 

• Investigate completely any possible collaborative or corroborative means within 
the Town or the region in order to control costs 

• Be prepared to justify requests line by line for 2021-2022 budget requests 
 

 Questions regarding the 2021-2022 budgeting process can be directed to either the 
Chairman of the BOF (I can be reached at sdickson133@gmail.com) or the First Selectman. 
Thank you. 


	Dec 9,  2021  BOFAGENDA
	01A_OCT 21_bof_minutes
	01B_11232021_bof_minutes
	02_TOS Fin 11.30.21 Balance Sheet
	02_TOS Fin 11.30.21 Budget vs Actual
	05_2022 BOF Meeting Calendar
	06_2022-23 BOF Budget Calendar
	2.) finalize Budget for Town Meeting

	09A_BOE Curr Review  12.7.21
	09A_BOE Staffing packet
	09A_BOE Dec mtng financials
	09A_BOE Financials 10.26.21
	10A_BOE 10 year capital Plan for 2022-2023  approved by the BOE 12-6-21
	10A_BOE Network Upgrades - Switches & Access Points  #3
	10A_BOE TOS Emergency Shelter Generator  #2
	10A_GLVFC AED's Cap Requ
	10A_GLVFC Gear & Hose Cap Requ
	10A_Rec Dept Cap Req Dog Park
	10A_Rec Dept Cap Req Pavillion
	10A_Rec Dept Cap Req Walking Path
	10A_Registrars MEMO BOF
	10A_SVFC Cap Requ SCBA
	10A_SVFC Cap Requ Warning Lights
	10A_SVFC Cap Request Reporting Software
	10A_SVFC Turnout gear and Hose



